I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

The Petitioner herein is Trooper Allen Ashby of the Idaho State Police 

(referred to as "Trooper Ashby" or "Ashby"). Ashby is the Respondent in the 

action filed in the Court of Appeals of the State of Washington, Division III, 

and the Defendant in the action filed in the Spokane County Superior Court. 

II. DECISION OF THE COURT OF APPEALS 

Trooper Ashby seeks review of the decision of Court of Appeals in 

Pruczinski v. Ashby, 2015 WL 600325, attached as Appendix A, and referred 

to herein as the "Opinion." A divided court filed the opinion on February 12, 

2015. Opinion, pg. 15 (Brown, J. dissenting). 

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

The following issues are presented for review: 

1. Does the Court of Appeals decision conflict with the standards set 
forth by the Washington Supreme Court when it fails to determine 
whether Idaho State Police Trooper Ashby purposefully directed his 
activities at Washington such that he derived benefit therefrom? 

2. Does the Court of Appeals decision that a stop of an Idaho-licensed 
car/driver by an Idaho State Police trooper for investigation of driving 
under the influence, a felony, on a road that straddles the 
Idaho/Washington border, in an area the trooper believed to be in 
Idaho, conflict with the Washington Supreme Court's holding that 
there must be a substantial connection between the defendant and the 
State of Washington sufficient to extend jurisdiction under the long 
arm statute? 
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3. Does the Court of Appeals decision conflict with the due process 
elements adopted by the Washington Supreme Court when it based 
its finding of "purposeful minimum contacts" with the State of 
Washington upon Trooper Ashby's interactions with Pruczinski 
rather than upon his contacts with the State of Washington? 

4. Does the Court of Appeals decision extending Washington 
jurisdiction to an Idaho State Police trooper, who is an Idaho resident, 
conflict with and offend the traditional notions of fair play and 
substantial justice as articulated by the Washington Supreme Court? 

5. Do Washington courts have subject matter jurisdiction to hear civil 
disputes brought by an Idaho resident against an Idaho resident/Idaho 
state employee for performing his duties as an Idaho State Police 
trooper on a road which straddles the Idaho/Washington border? 

6. Does the Court of Appeals decision conflict with the recognized 
principles of comity followed by Washington courts? 

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

A. Factual Background 

This action arises from a traffic stop by Idaho State Trooper Ashby of 

an Idaho-licensed car for suspicion of driving under the influence and the 

subsequent arrest of the driver. The stop occurred on North Idaho Road, 

which straddles the Idaho/Washington border. CP 23-24, 29, 31, 34, 35,40-

42, 47, 127-129, and BriefofRespondent, pp. 6-7 and Exhibit No.1, filed in 

the Court of Appeals, Division III, on May 6, 2014. 

On April 30, 2010, at approximately 11 :45 p.m., Trooper Ashby was 

on patrol in a marked Idaho State Police patrol car equipped with overhead 
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patrol lights westbound on Interstate 90 in Idaho. CP 41. A few miles east of 

the Idaho border with Washington, near mile marker 2, he observed a vehicle 

bearing Idaho license plates 1 weaving back and forth in its lane in a 

construction zone. CP 41. He followed the vehicle and observed it take Exit 

299 at the Idaho/Washington border without using a turn signal. CP 41. Exit 

299 provides access to roads in both Idaho and Washington. Brief of 

Respondent, pp. 6-7, and Exhibit No. 1. After exiting, the vehicle turned 

south, swinging wide and driving across the fog line onto the shoulder. CP 

41. As Trooper Ashby continued to follow the vehicle, it drifted across the 

double yellow line. CP 41. He also observed the car drift into the oncoming 

lane of travel on several occasions while navigating the comers of Spokane 

River Bridge Road. CP 41. Trooper Ashby then observed the Idaho vehicle 

turn onto North Idaho Road entering back into Idaho where it sped up to 44 

m.p.h. in a posted 35 m.p.h. zone. CP 41. Trooper Ashby turned on his 

overhead patrol lights to stop the vehicle to investigate the operator for 

2 

The vehicle had an Idaho license plate, number K425660, and was 
later confirmed to belong to Idaho resident Ricky Bell (hereinafter 
"Bell"). CP 22-28, 163. 

The driver of the Idaho vehicle was later identified as Kay Pruczinski 
(hereinafter "Pruczinski") who resides at 2054 S. Stateline Road, Post 
Falls, Idaho. CP 22-28, 163. 
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impaired driving. CP 41. The vehicle pulled to the west shoulder ofNorth 

Idaho Road. CP 41. Ashby suspected the driver was potentially driving under 

the influence because of the poor driving patterns he had observed. CP 41. 

When Trooper Ashby approached the vehicle, which had dark, tinted 

windows, he noted the female driver was wearing sunglasses although it was 

almost midnight. CP 41. This raised his suspicions that she did not want him 

to see her eyes. CP 41. Despite several requests from Ashby, Pruczinksi 

refused to roll her window down more than an inch, precluding Trooper 

Ashby from seeing completely into the vehicle. CP 41. Pruczinski refused 

repeated requests to roll down her window or to step out of the vehicle. CP 

41. From his years of experience, Ashby believed this behavior to be common 

to alcohol-impaired drivers trying to conceal the odor of alcohol. CP 41. 

At this time Pruczinski was acting hysterical, yelling and demanding 

a female officer. CP 42. Ashby saw Pruczinski reach to her right for 

something but was unable to see what she was reaching for and he took cover 

behind the "A" pillar of her vehicle. CP 42. As he shined his flashlight 

through the windshield, he saw Pruczinski reach into a purse in a furtive 

manner and feared she was retrieving a weapon. CP 42. He again ordered her 

out of the vehicle, but she refused. CP 42. He then broke out the driver's side 

window with his asp and secured her left arm. CP 42. She continued to refuse 
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to get out of the vehicle, so he unlocked the door, reached in to unclasp her 

seatbelt, opened her door, and removed her from the vehicle. CP 42. 

Because Pruczinski continued to resist once Trooper Ashby removed 

her from the vehicle, he handcuffed her, patted her down, and placed her in 

his patrol car. CP 42. He then transported her to Kootenai County Jail where 

she was booked into custody. CP 42. 

B. Procedural History 

Plaintiffs, 3 Idaho residents Pruczinski and Bell, filed this action for 

alleged injuries and property damage against Idaho State Police Trooper 

Allen Ashby and his wife, Jennifer Ashby, both of whom are Idaho residents, 

in Spokane County Superior Court on April26, 2012. CP 3-9. An Amended 

Complaint was filed on June 13,2012. CP 22-28. The Ashbys filed a motion 

to dismiss pursuant to CR 12(b)(l) and CR 12(b)(2) contending that the 

Washington courts lacked subject matter and personal jurisdiction over them. 

CP 39. In the alternative, the Ashbys requested that Washington decline 

jurisdiction based on the principles of comity. Mrs. Ashby, who was a named 

defendant in the action, filed a motion to dismiss the complaint as to her 

pursuant to CR 12(b)(6). CP 39. Pruczinski stipulated to this dismissal and 

3 Plaintiffs are collectively referred to herein as "Pruczinski." 
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an order dismissing her was entered on September 11, 2013. CP 220-221. 

The trial court then dismissed the case against Trooper Ashby pursuant to CR 

12(b )(2), ruling that Washington jurisdiction would not comport with due 

process. RP, pg. 27, CP 222-223. 

Pruczinski appealed this dismissal on September 27, 2013. CP 226. 

The Court of Appeals scheduled the matter for consideration without oral 

argument on October 21, 2014, and the published opinion (Brown, J. 

dissenting) was issued on February 12, 2015. A divided Court of Appeals 

reversed the trial court's dismissal and remanded the issue of comity to the 

trial court for further proceedings consistent with the Court of Appeals' 

opinion on that issue. Opinion, pg.13-14. Trooper Ashby now petitions this 

Court for review in accordance with RAP 13.4(b). 

V.ARGUMENT 

A. Summary of Argument in Support of Review of the Court of 
Appeals Decision. 

This is not a case where the defendant, Trooper Ashby, intentionally 

reached out beyond the borders of his state, Idaho, to purposefully derive 

benefit from his alleged interstate activities with Washington. Nor is this a 

case where Trooper Ashby purposefully directed his alleged activities at the 

state of Washington or its residents. Pruczinski and Bell, both residents of 
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Idaho, did not meet their burden of establishing the requisite elements to 

impose long-arm jurisdiction over Idaho employee and resident Ashby. In 

addition, the Court of Appeals impermissibly relied upon Pruczinski's 

allegation that she was on a portion ofNorth Idaho Road in Washington to 

extend jurisdiction and in doing so misapplied the law. 

B. Review of the Court of Appeals Decision Should be Granted 
under RAP 13.4(b)(l), (2), (3) and (4). 

This case presents the unique situation of meeting all four of the 

criteria for review of the Court of Appeals' decision. RAP 13.4(b) identifies 

the criteria for acceptance of review by the Washington Supreme Court: 

( 1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict 
with a decision of the Supreme Court; or 

(2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict 
with another decision of the Court of Appeals; or 

(3) If a significant question oflaw under the Constitution 
of the State of Washington or of the United States is 
involved; or 

( 4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public 
interest that should be determined by the Supreme 
Court. 

The Court of Appeals' decision conflicts with the Washington 

Supreme Court's decision in Grange Ins. Ass 'n v. State, 110 Wn.2d 752,757 

P.2d 933 (1988), and the ruling of the Court of Appeals, Division III, in Does 

1-9 v. CompCare, Inc., 52 Wn. App. 688, 763 P.2d 1237 (1988). The Court 

of Appeals also erred when it applied a constitutional analysis of due process 
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which has been rejected by the U.S. Supreme Court in Walden v. Fiore, 134 

S.Ct. 1115, 188 L.Ed.2d 12 (2014). 

In addition to the conflicts with established Washington law, the 

Court of Appeals' decision raises significant questions regarding due process 

under the constitutions of the State of Washington and the United States. The 

Court of Appeals' decision creates confusion as to how an Idaho officer, 

observing a potentially intoxicated driver of an Idaho vehicle in Idaho and 

then later on a road which straddles the Idaho/Washington border, is to 

structure his conduct such that he does not unintentionally subject himself to 

the long-armjurisdiction ofWashington courts. Confusion will also arise for 

any Washington police officer faced with the same situation in enforcing the 

laws on Washington roads which straddle and intertwine with the 

Idaho/Washington border, including North Idaho Road, where this stop 

occurred. 

Furthermore, the jurisdictional issues which arise in this action have 

not previously been addressed by the courts of this State and are issues of 

substantial public interest. Indeed, Ashby has not located an analogous case 

in any other jurisdiction with similar facts. 

The Court of Appeals misapplied the standards established by the 

Washington Supreme Court, issued a decision which conflicts with a prior 
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decision of the Division III Court of Appeals, and wrongly applied an 

analytical framework rejected by the U.S. Supreme Court. The issues raised 

by the facts of this case are of substantial importance in guiding law 

enforcement agencies in both Idaho and Washington in structuring their 

conduct when performing their duties in areas and roadways encompassing 

the state line so that they are not haled into a foreign court based on an 

unintentional incursion across an unmarked border. Because the issues oflaw 

in this case meet the requisite criteria of RAP 13.4(b), discretionary review 

should be granted. 

C. The Court of Appeals Decision Conflicts with Prior Decision s of 
the Washington Supreme Court and the Court of Appeals. 

In Grange, the Court of Appeals reversed the trial court's dismissal 

of the State of Idaho on jurisdictional grounds when it concluded that the 

injury occurred in Washington thereby satisfying the statutory requirement 

that a tortious act occur in Washington. Grange, 110 Wn.2d at 757. On 

appeal, Idaho did not challenge this conclusion but instead argued that the 

Court of Appeals erred in its constitutional analysis. Grange, 110 Wn.2d at 

757. 

In Grange, this Court detailed the process by which a court should 

analyze the due process test. Most importantly, this Court held that to meet 
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the due process element of"purposeful minimum contacts" with Washington, 

the Court of Appeals must engage in a defendant-focused inquiry. Grange, 

110 Wn.2d at 760. This would require the court to determine whether 

Trooper Ashby "purposefully directed his activities towards this state 

[Washington]", such that he "'purposefully derive[d] benefit' from [his] 

interstate activities." Grange, 110 Wn.2d at 760. Nowhere did the Court of 

Appeals address what benefit Trooper Ashby may have purposefully derived 

from his stop of an Idaho vehicle on an Idaho/Washington border road to 

investigate a suspected impaired driver that he had initially encountered in 

Idaho. 

Furthermore, the Court of Appeals overlooked the requirement of a 

substantial contact by Trooper Ashby with the State of Washington. 

SeaHAVN, Ltd., v. Glitnir Bank, 154 Wn. App. 550, 564, 226 P.3d 141 

(2010). Instead the Court of Appeals relied on Pruczinski's allegation that a 

tortious act occurred in Washington. See Opinion, pg. 7. This analysis 

utilized a process which satisfied only the statutory element of long-arm 

jurisdiction and failed to address the requisite due process element. As this 

Court held in Oliver v. Am. Motors Corp., 70 Wn.2d 875,425 P.2d 647,655 

(1967): 
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The present problem is whether the jurisdiction over the 
person can constitutionally be acquired where, although the 
state of Washington is the place oftort, the out-of-state actor 
has no other contacts with this state and particularly has 
done nothing 'purposeful' looking toward the projection 
of the consequences of his act into the territory ofthe state 
of Washington. The term 'purposeful' we use, of course, 
in the sense that the actor intended or at least could be 
charged with knowledge that his conduct might have 
consequences in another state. 

Oliver, 70 Wn.2d at 887 (emphasis added). 

In addition, the Court of Appeals failed to apply case law which it 

previously adopted. The Division III Court of Appeals held in CompCare: 

An objective test is used to determine jurisdiction: Should the 
defendant, based upon his contact with the forum state, 
reasonably anticipate being haled into court there? Huebner 
v. Sales Promotion, Inc., 38 Wash.App. 66, 684 P.2d 752 
(1984), review denied, 103 Wash.2d 1018, cert. denied, 474 
U.S. 818, 106 S.Ct. 64, 88 L.Ed.2d 52 (1985). A nonresident 
defendant must purposefully avail itself of the privilege of 
conducting activities within the forum state, thereby invoking 
the benefits and protections of its laws. Hanson v. Denckla, 
357 U.S. 235, 253, 78 S.Ct. 1228, 1239, 2 L.Ed.2d 1283 
(1958). Stated another way, there must exist a substantial 
connection between the defendant and the forum state 
which comes about by an action of the defendant 
purposefully directed toward the forum state. Asahi Metal 
Indus. Co. v. Superior Court, 480 U.S. 102, 107 S.Ct. 1026, 
1033, 94 L.Ed.2d 92 (1987). 

The issue is whether the contacts were purposefully directed 
toward the forum and whether the defendant benefited 
thereby. Grange Ins. Ass 'n v. State, supra. 

- 11-



CompCare, 52 Wn. App. at 696-698 (emphasis added). 

This standard was upheld by the U.S. Supreme Court in Walden: "For 

a State to exercise jurisdiction consistent with due process, the defendant's 

suit-related conduct must create a substantial connection with the forum 

State." Walden, 134 S. Ct. at 1121-22. 

Had the Court of Appeals applied this test, it would have affirmed the 

trial court's dismissal. In short, the Court of Appeals failed to utilize the 

appropriate analysis in reaching its decision to reverse the trial court. 

D. The Court of Appeals Opinion Conflicts with Prior Opinions of 
the U.S. Supreme Court. 

Rather than engaging in the analyses set forth in Grange and 

CompCare, the Court of Appeals relied upon Pruczinski' s allegations that the 

alleged tortious act occurred in Washington and that she suffered harm in 

Washington. Opinion, pg. 7. This approach was rejected by the U.S. Supreme 

Court in Walden. 

In Walden, the U.S. Supreme Court held that a Covington, Georgia, 

city police officer did not create sufficient contacts with Nevada simply 

because he allegedly directed his conduct at plaintiffs whom he knew had 

Nevada connections. Here, Ashby had even less knowledge than the Georgia 

officer. In fact, Ashby had no such knowledge- he pulled over an Idaho car 
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on North Idaho Road in an area of the road he believed to be in Idaho after 

encountering the vehicle on Interstate 90 in Idaho. Nothing in the record 

supports the allegation that Trooper Ashby had any other activity in 

Washington beyond his interaction with Pruczinski and, in fact, the critical 

events from which this traffic stop stem arose in Idaho when Trooper Ashby 

first observed an Idaho vehicle weaving in its lane on Interstate 90. "[T]he 

plaintiff cannot be the only link between the defendant and the forum. Rather, 

it is the defendant's conduct that must form the necessary connection with the 

forum State that is the basis for its jurisdiction over him." Walden, 134 S. Ct. 

at 1122-23 (internal citations omitted). 

In Walden, the U.S. Supreme Court stated: "The Court of Appeals 

reached a contrary conclusion by shifting the analytical focus from 

petitioner's contacts with the forum to his contacts with respondents." 

Walden, 134 S. Ct. at 1124. This "approach to the 'minimum contacts' 

analysis impermissibly allows a plaintiffs contacts with the defendant and 

the forum to drive the jurisdictional analysis." Walden, 134 S. Ct. at 1125. 

"We have consistently rejected attempts to satisfy the defendant-focused 

'minimum contacts' inquiry by demonstrating contacts between the plaintiff 

(or third parties) and the forum State. Walden, 134 S. Ct. at 1122. 
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As the was the case in Walden, the Court of Appeals here also 

misapplied Calder v. Jones, 465 U.S. 783, 104 S. Ct. 1482,79 L. Ed. 2d 804 

(1984). The U.S. Supreme Court in Walden noted that when addressing the 

defendant's contacts: 

Relying on Calder, respondents emphasize that they suffered 
the "injury" caused by petitioner's allegedly tortious conduct 
. . . while they were residing in the forum. Brief for 
Respondents 14. This emphasis is likewise misplaced. As 
previously noted, Calder made clear that mere injury to a 
forum resident is not a sufficient connection to the forum. 
Regardless of where a plaintiff lives or works, an injury is 
jurisdictionally relevant only insofar as it shows that the 
defendant has formed a contact with the forum State. The 
proper question is not where the plaintiff experienced a 
particular injury or effect but whether the defendant's conduct 
connects him to the forum in a meaningful way. 

Walden, 134 S.Ct. at 1125 (emphasis added). 

Finally, the Court of Appeals impermissibly relied upon the alleged 

geographic locus of the alleged harm and failed to pay proper attention to 

whether Trooper Ashby intentionally reached out beyond the borders ofldaho 

to purposefully direct his actions at Washington or its residents and thus 

derived benefit therefrom. Clearly, nothing done by Trooper Ashby was 

directed at a resident of Washington. As articulated by the U.S. Supreme 

Court, "A defendant's contacts with the forum State may be intertwined with 

his interactions with the plaintiff, but that standing alone is an insufficient 
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basis for jurisdiction." Walden, 134 S.Ct. at 1122-1123 citing Rush v. 

Savchuk, 444 U.S. 320, 332, 100 S.Ct. 571, 62 L.Ed.2d 516 (1980). "Due 

process requires that a defendant be haled into court in a forum State based 

on his own affiliation with the State, not based on the 'random, fortuitous, or 

attenuated' contacts he makes by interacting with other persons affiliated 

with the State." Walden, 134 S.Ct. at 1122-23, citing Burger King Corp. v. 

Rudzewicz, 471 U.S. 462, 475, 105 S.Ct. 2174, 85 L.Ed.2d 528 (1985) 

(internal quotation marks omitted). 

E. The Court of Appeals Failed to Follow the Appropriate Standard 
of Review in Determining that Washington Courts Had Subject 
Matter Jurisdiction. 

Unlike the strict limitations involved in a Rule 12(b)(6) motion, a 

Rule 12(b)(l) motion is considered a "speaking motion" and can include 

references to evidence extraneous to the complaint without converting it to 

a Rule 56 motion. "Unlike a Rule 12(b)(6) motion, a Rule 12(b)(l) motion 

can attack the substance of a complaint's jurisdictional allegations despite 

their formal sufficiency, and in doing so rely on affidavits or any other 

evidence properly before the court." St. Clair v. City of Chico, 880 F .2d 199, 

201 (9th Cir. 1989). Thus, the existence of disputed material facts will not 

preclude a trial court from evaluating for itself the merits of jurisdictional 

claims. !d. In fact, a court may consider extrinsic evidence to determine 
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whether subject matter jurisdiction exists and may resolve factual disputes if 

necessary. Thornhill Publishing Co. v. General Tel & Elect., 594 F.2d 730, 

733 (9th Cir. 1979); see also FRCP 12(b)(l). More importantly, because a 

plaintiff bears the burden of establishing subject matter jurisdiction, no 

presumption of truthfulness attaches to the allegations of the complaint and 

a court must presume it lacks jurisdiction until the plaintiff establishes 

jurisdiction. Stock West, Inc. v. Confederated Tribes of the Colville 

Reservation, 873 F.2d 1221, 1225 (9th Cir. 1989). Where subject matter 

jurisdiction is lacking, dismissal under Rule 12(b)(l) is mandated. Mendoza 

v. Neudorfer Eng'rs, Inc., 145 Wn. App. 146, 149, 185 P.3d 1204 (2008). 

Ashby was an Idaho state employee, specifically an Idaho State Police 

trooper, on duty on April30, 2012. He stopped Pruczinski, an Idaho resident, 

who was driving an Idaho-licensed vehicle, on North Idaho Road, which 

straddles the Idaho/Washington border, to investigate her impaired driving. 

Regardless of how Pruczinski couches the complaint allegations, this is a 

civil dispute between residents of the State ofldaho arising from a traffic stop 

by an Idaho State Police trooper on a road straddling the Idaho/Washington 

border. Subject matter jurisdiction lies with the courts in Idaho. 
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F. Under the Principles of Comity Recognized in Washington, the 
Dismissal Should Have Been Affirmed. 

InFernandezv. State, exrel. Dep'tofHighways, 49 Wn. App. 28,741 

P.2d 1010 (1987), Division II of the Court of Appeals articulated 

circumstances under which comity should be applied. Viewing the principles 

enunciated in Fernandez, there exists a clear basis for the application of 

comity here where an Idaho resident is suing an Idaho State Police trooper, 

who stopped an Idaho-licensed vehicle, on a road which straddles the border, 

based in part on his observations of the Idaho vehicle when he first 

encountered it on Interstate 90 in Idaho. 

The trial court did not address the issue of comity in its decision 

because its ruling was based on jurisdiction. The Court of Appeals did not 

address the application of comity in its decision and instead remanded that 

issue for consideration by the trial court. While it is not uncommon for an 

appellate court to remand on an issue not decided by the trial court, the Court 

of Appeals went one step further and in essence suggested that the trial court 

carefully consider comity because its application would leave Pruzinski 

without a remedy when it stated: "However, comity, being a discretionary 

doctrine, should not be exercised in such a way to leave the plaintiff without 

a remedy. We note that the facts giving rise to the complaint occurred more 
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than four years ago. We encourage the trial court to exercise its discretion in 

such a manner that would not cause Ms. Pruczinski's claim to be time 

barred." Opinion, pp. 13-14. In substance, the Court of Appeals directed the 

trial court on remand not to apply comity to this action. 

In Grange, this Court also rejected Grange's argument that it had no 

alternative forum except Washington to pursue its remedy against Idaho. 

Grange, 110 Wn.2d at 764-765. However, this Court clearly stated in Grange 

that, "Nevertheless, the availability of an alternative forum, although 

important to analysis of the 'fair play and substantial justice' under the third 

due process element, is irrelevant to analysis of the first element. If the first 

element's requirement of purposeful minimum contacts is not met, then 

jurisdiction cannot be maintained here, regardless of the plaintiffs interest in 

obtaining relief." Grange, 110 Wn.2d at 765. 

Pruzinski chose the Washington forum. Pruzinski had two years to 

file an action in Idaho where she and Trooper Ashby resided. Neither the 

Court of Appeals nor the trial court should ignore the sound principles behind 

comity merely because a party purposefully and knowingly chose an improper 

forum. 
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VI. CONCLUSION 

After first encountering Pruczinski on Interstate 90 in Idaho, Trooper 

Ashby stopped a driver he suspected of driving under the influence on North 

Idaho Road, which straddles the border of Idaho and Washington. There is 

no mark on this road which indicates which portions of it are in Idaho and 

which are in Washington. It merely travels south straddling the state line. 

Trooper Ashby believed he was on a part of the road in Idaho when he 

stopped Pruczinski. He did not intentionally and expressly aim his activities 

at the State of Washington or its residents. Pruczinksi was not even a resident 

of Washington. Trooper Ashby did not derive any benefit from his activities. 

As an employee of the Idaho State Police, an Idaho governmental agency, he 

was performing a service for the benefit of others who could be at risk 

because of a potentially impaired driver. The logical consequence of 

extending jurisdiction over an Idaho State Police trooper based on the 

happenstance of an unseeable, unmarked and unknowable state line on a road 

which straddles an invisible state line, engenders an unjust and oppressive 

extension of jurisdiction. In conclusion, Ashby respectfully submits that the 

Court of Appeals should have affirmed the trial court's decision. 
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PUBLISHED OPINION 

LAWRENCE-BERREY, J. -At issue is whether Washington State has personal 

jurisdiction and subject matter jurisdiction over an Idaho police officer who allegedly 

assaulted an Idaho resident just within this state's border. The trial court ruled that 

Washington State lacked personal jurisdiction over Allen Ashby. Given the facts alleged, 

we hold that Washington has both personal jurisdiction and subject matter jurisdiction. 

Also at issue is whether Washington should decline jurisdiction on the basis of comity. 

We hold that the record is insufficient for us to decide this issue. In summary, we reverse 

the order of dismissal and remand this matter to the trial court for it to exercise its 
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discretion on whether to decline jurisdiction on the basis of comity. 

FACTS 

Kay Pruczinski, a resident of Idaho, and Ricky Bell filed a complaint in Spokane 

County Superior Court against Allen Ashby, an Idaho state trooper, alleging that she

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