RECEIVED 
SUPREME COURT 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
Apr 10, 2015, 11:56 am 

BY RONALD R CARPENTER 
CLERK 

RECEIVEOsY E-MAIL 
Court of Appeals Cause No. 31977-6-III 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

KAY L. PRUCZINSKI, a single person, and 
RICKY BELL, a single person, 

Respondents, 

v. 

ALLEN ASHBY and JENNIFER ASHBY, husband and wife, 
and the marital community comprised thereof, 

Petitioners. 

Answer to Petition for Review 

DOUGLAS D. PHELPS, WSBA #22620 
Phelps & Associates, P.S. 
2903 N. Stout Road 
Spokane, W A 99206 
Phone: (509) 892-0467 
Email: phelps@phelpslaw 1.com 

Attorney for Respondents 

-1-

r""'·i ~ -~~.~, :r;, ~ ,n ~ 

~J ~ ~~ :;. ~-~~~L

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

II. ARGUMENT 

A. Summary of Arguments 

Mr. Ashby's analysis mischaracterizes the status of the case law. 

After reviewing and applying the law, it becomes clear that he is subject to 

Washington jurisdiction, both personal and subject matter. The arguments 

outlined below show there is no plausible expectation for granting review 

of the decision by the Court of Appeals. 

B. Review of the Court of Appeals Decision Should Not Be 
Granted 
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Mr. Ashby's Petition for Review is a discretionary one which this 

Court is not required to accept. Of course, as the last court within the 

Washington court system, Mr. Ashby is certainly allowed to request 

review. However, his basis for requesting review is flawed and 

mischaracterizes the published opinion issued by the Court of Appeals. 

i. The Court of Appeals Decision Does Not Conflict With 
Existing Law 

Mr. Ashby contends that the Court of Appeals' decision conflicts 

with two cases, Grange Ins. Ass'n v. State, 110 Wn.2d 752, 757 P.2d 933 

(1988) and Does 1-9 v. CompCare, Inc., 52 Wn. App. 688, 763 P.2d 1237 

( 1988). Neither case helps Mr. Ashby nor was either case improperly used 

by the Court of Appeals in this case. 

Grange, supra, was dismissed because of insufficient contacts with 

the State of Washington. Literally, there were no contacts by the Grange 

Defendants in the State of Washington. The cows, which were the source 

of the jurisdictional issue, never even arrived in Washington and that is 

why the Court dismissed the case for lack of jurisdiction. Here, because 

Mr. Ashby left the State of Idaho and drove into the State of Washington, 

that is considered "purposeful contact" pursuant to Grange, CompCare and 
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Oliver v. Am. Motors Corp., 70 Wn.2d 875, 425 P.2d 647 (1967), as well 

as several other well established cases in this state. 

Further, this case has nothing to do with whether or not Mr. Ashby 

"intentionally and expressly" aimed his activities at the State of 

Washington or its residents, as Mr. Ashby states in his Petition for 

Review. The standard is whether or not Mr. Ashby had actual or 

constructive notice that his actions in Washington could result m 

consequences in Washington. Oliver v. Am. Motors Com., 70 Wn.2d 875, 

887, 425 P.2d 647 (1967). Being an Idaho law enforcement officer, Mr. 

Ashby certainly had at least constructive notice that his conduct (in either 

state) would have consequences. 

The first point of inquiry; however, is whether or not Mr. Ashby's 

contact on the night of April 30, 2010, occurred within the borders of the 

State of Washington, and everything shows that he did, including his own 

stipulation that the events occurred within the borders of the State of 

Washington. Court of Appeals Opinion, Page 3; Report of Proceedings at 

6, 9. 

The second point of inquiry is whether Mr. Ashby's contact within 

the State of Washington was "purposeful" pursuant to Grange, CompCare 

and Oliver. For contact to be "purposeful," all that is required is that "the 
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actor intend[s], or at least could have been charged with knowledge 

that his conduct might have consequences in another state." Oliver at 

70 Wn.2d 875, 887 (1967)(emphasis added). 

Mr. Ashby's argument that "substantial contact" (rather than 

purposeful contact) is a required standard is flawed. He cites to 

CompCare, which discussed substantial "connections." The case provided 

an important objective test to determine jurisdiction, and that is, "[s]hould 

the defendant, based upon his contact with the forum state, reasonably 

anticipate being hauled into court there?" CompCare, 52 Wn. App. At 

696-698 (citing Huebner v. Sales Promotion, Inc., 38 Wash.App. 66, 684 

P.2d 752 (1984), review denied, 103 Wash.2d 1018, cert. denied, 474 U.S. 

818, 106 S.Ct. 64, 88 L.Ed.2d 52 (1985)). 

Nothing suggests that Mr. Ashby did not have constructive notice 

that committing an act in Washington would have consequences in 

Washington-he is a police officer after all and is expected, at the very 

least, to know that actions in one jurisdiction will have consequences in 

that jurisdiction. Without that basic level of knowledge, Mr. Ashby would 

arguably be unable to do his job if he did not know that actions have 

consequences, and in the legal system, those consequences come from the 

jurisdiction the act is committed in. 
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The Court of Appeals properly applied all of the applicable case 

law in this matter. Because Mr. Ashby violated the laws of Washington 

State while literally standing (physically present) in Washington State, 

having observed all alleged traffic violations of Ms. Pruczinski in 

Washington State, and having conducted himself in a manner contrary to 

Washington law, Mr. Ashby's actions have consequences in Washington 

State. This case is the consequence of his actions. 

ii. The Court of Appeals Decision Does Not Incorrectly 
Apply Prior Opinions of the U.S. Supreme Court 

Again, Mr. Ashby mischaracterizes the decisions of higher courts 

as it relates to establishing jurisdiction. He states that the Court of 

Appeals applied a constitutional due process analysis which was rejected 

by the U.S. Supreme Court in Walden v. Fiore,_ U.S._, 134 S.Ct. 

1115, 188 L.Ed.2d 12, 82 U.S.L.W. 4097 (2014); however, in reality, the 

Court of Appeals followed the Walden standard and applied the case law 

appropriately in this case. In Walden, the Georgia police officer was 

working as a deputized Drug Enforcement Administration agent at an 

airport. He came into contact with the plaintiffs while working at the 

airport, and was sued by the Plaintiffs for his role in drafting a probable 

cause affidavit to seize certain funds from the plaintiffs. He never went 
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into Nevada, nor did he have any type of "minimum" or "purposeful" 

contact with Nevada. Where the deputy in Walden had no actual contact 

with Nevada, here, Mr. Ashby drove a marked patrol car that was 

patrolling the border of Idaho and Washington, actually following a driver 

into the State of Washington and committing tortious acts within the State 

of Washington. This case is factually distinguishable, to say the least, 

from Walden. 

The constitutional due process analysis pursuant to Walden 

actually helps Kay Pruczinski, not Mr. Ashby. Here, the Court of Appeals 

determined that Mr. Ashby had sufficient contact with the State of 

Washington. According to the U.S. Supreme Court, in order to determine 

jurisdiction the Court must first determine whether or not Mr. Ashby had a 

relationship with Washington based on his conduct and the connection 

between that conduct and Washington. Walden v. Fiore,_ U.S. _, 

134 S.Ct. 1115, 188 L.Ed.2d 12, 82 U.S.L.W. 4097 (2014)(citing Burger 

King Corp v. Rudzewicz, 471 U.S. 462, 475 (1985)). As stated above, 

Mr. Ashby conceded that the conduct occurred in Washington State. 

Second, the Court must look to Mr. Ashby's contacts with Washington. 

"minimum contacts" analysis. Id (citing International Shoe v. State of 

Washington, 326 U.S. 310, 66 S.Ct. 154, 90 L.Ed. 95 (1945)). Again, the 
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fact that Mr. Ashby was in the State of Washington at the time of the 

incident is sufficient to satisfy the "minimum contact" due process 

requirement. He created the relationship with Washington State based on 

his conduct within the borders of Washington. 

There is no discrepancy between what Division III of the 

Washington Court of Appeals did in this case and what the U.S. Supreme 

Court has done with dozens of jurisdictional questions before. As the 

Supreme Court has said numerous times, "it is the defendant's conduct 

that must form the necessary connection with the forum State that is the 

basis for its jurisdiction over him." Walden, supra, at 1115; Burger King, 

supra, at 4 78. 

iii. The Court of Appeals Did Not Fail to Follow The 
Appropriate Standard of Review in Determining that 
Washington Courts Had Subject Matter Jurisdiction 

As the Court of Appeals stated, "[t]he superior courts of 

Washington State have subject matter jurisdiction over tort actions." 

Opinion at 10. This lawsuit against Mr. Ashby is based on Mr. Ashby's 

conduct while in the State of Washington. The courts of Washington State 

resolve disputes such as this all the time. It does not matter if Mr. Ashby 

was an employee of Idaho or the federal government; when his conduct 

occurred within the confines of this State and violated laws of this State, 
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our courts gained jurisdiction over the subject matter of this controversy. 

More aptly stated by the Court of Appeals, "[i]t should come as no 

surprise to Trooper Ashby that his conduct in our state could subject him 

to Washington jurisdiction," both subject matter and personal. Opinion at 

9. 

iv. It is Not Appropriate For This Court to Determine 
Issues of Comity At This Time 

Whether or not to invoke comity is a discretionary decision of the 

trial court. Haberman v. Washington Public Power Supply System, 744 

P.2d 1032, 109 Wn.2d 107 (Wash. 1987)(citing Mianecki v. Second 

Judicial Dist. Court, 99 Nev. 93, 98, 658 P.2d 422, cert. dismissed, 464 

U.S. 806, 104 S.Ct. 195 (1983); Smith v. Fletcher, 102 Wash. 218, 222, 

173 P. 19 (1918). This is not an issue that the Court of Appeals felt 

comfortable with ruling on and should not be an issue that this Court rules 

on. This decision is best left to the trial court. 

Additionally, leaving this matter to the Idaho Courts would leave 

Ms. Pruczinski without a remedy, as the statutory time limits to make a 

claim against a government official has passed. It would not be just to 

take away her rights here, when all the case law supports her case's 
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jurisdictional standing, and then send her to Idaho to fail at prosecuting an 

action against the tortfeasor, Mr. Ashby. 

III. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons stated above, Ms. Pruczinski and Mr. Bell